M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 28, 2001
9:02 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 28, Side A
SFC 01 # 28, Side B
SFC 01 # 29, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:02 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Loren Leman

Al so Attending: LI SA KIRSCH, Assistant Attorney General, Human
Services Section, Departnent of Law, JANET CLARKE, Director,
Division of Admnistrative Services, Departnent of Health and
Social Services; BOB LABBE, Director, Dvision of Medical
Assi stance, Departnment of Health and Social Services; BARBARA
RITCH E, Deputy Attorney General, Cvil D vision, Departnent of
Law, DEAN GUANELI, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Legal Services
Section, Crimnal D vision, Departnent of Law

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

SB 73- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS/ AMEND APPROP.

The Commttee heard from the Departnent of Health and Social
Services and the Departnent of Law. The bill was held in Commttee.

#SB 73
SENATE BI LL NO 73

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations and naking and
anendi ng ot her appropriations; and providing for an effective

SFC- 01 (1) 02/ 28/ 01



date."

Co- Chair Donley announced that the bill would not report from
Commttee at this hearing.

Departnent of Health and Social Services

LI SA KIRSCH, Assistant Attorney General, Human Services Section

Departnent of Law stated that she was the attorney that represented
the Departnment of Health and Social Services in the Planned
Par ent hood versus Perdue case that dealt with abortion funding. She
said she was prepared to either give a brief history of the case or
just answer questions if appropriate.

Co-Chair Kelly requested a brief history.

Ms. Kirsch recounted that the case first arose in June of 1998,
after the General Relief Medical programwas elimnated fromthe FY
99 budget. She specified that the issue arose as a challenge to the
constitutionality of elimnating funding for abortions when the
state provided funding for other pregnancy related services. She
noted there were other grounds as well, but the reasoning used in
the superior court ruling against the state was that the funding
practice was "a violation of the expressed right of privacy in the
Al aska constitution that made this action unconstitutional."

Ms. Kirsch told the Conmttee that the ruling was appeal ed and at
the sanme tine, the state requested a stay for the portion of the
order that required the Departnent of Health and Social Services to
i mredi ately pay for the abortion services. She explained the stay
was requested because the Departnent of Health and Social Services
felt there was no appropriation that was reasonably available to
cover these services for a variety of reasons. Sonme of the reasons,
she said relate to the way Medicaid is funded jointly fromboth the
federal governnent and the state. She |isted another reason as that
Al aska had an entirely separate program General Relief Medical
which paid for services that did not receive federal matching
f unds.

Ms. Kirsch continued that the stay was denied at the superior court
| evel and that the state renewed the notion for the stay to the
Suprenme Court but did not prevail there either. As a result, she
stated, the departnment had exhausted all options in ternms of
requesting a stay and was in the position of having been ordered by
both courts to pay for the services.

Ms. Kirsch noted that this was the status of the situation during

SFC- 01 (2) 02/ 28/ 01



the 2000 legislative session and that the agency requested a
suppl emental appropriation. At approxinmately the sanme tinme, she
stated the state filed a notion to "show cause why we shouldn't be
held in contenpt for failing to conply with the court order." She
said that after the |legislative session, hearings were held on the
contenpt issue and that the court did not actually hold the state
in contenpt although the ruling directed the Departnent of Health
and Social Services to pay for these services within 90 days,
i ncludi ng those services that had been pended during the tinme of
t he appeal .

Ms. Kirsch then stated that in Novenber 2000, the case was argued
before the Suprenme Court and that currently the parties are waiting
for a decision. Meanwhile, she said the departnment has been paying
for the services using general funds appropriated to the Medicaid
program

Senator Ward had a question regarding the author of the judge's
order instructing the departnent to pay for the services.

Ms. Kirsch replied that there were several different, interrel ated
docunents. She noted that initially, "at the hearing, the court
ruled from the bench.” She detailed the various docunents
pertaining to the court order, saying that the attorneys for the
plaintiffs, Planned Parenthood and the ACLU of New York, prepared
the final judgnment at the request of the judge.

Senat or Ward asked about the judge's ruling regarding the use of
Medi care general funds.

Ms. Kirsch responded that the judge felt there was nothing that
prevented the departnment fromtaking the noney out of general funds
that had been appropriated for Medicaid to pay for the abortion
servi ces. She explained that when the judge rules fromthe bench,
the judge wll often ask the prevailing party to draft the
judgment. Therefore, she said, this instance is not unusual.

Senat or Ward next asked if the Departnent of Law had performed a
| egal analysis as to whether or not those Medi caid funds are proper
funds under the law to be spent on abortions.

Ms. Kirsch affirned and noted this is one basis for the appeal. She
stated that this point has been before the superior court and the
Suprene Court as well.

Senator Leman requested a tinmeline of events. He asked for the

dates of the ruling fromthe bench and the date the Departnent of
Heal th and Social Services made the first paynent.

SFC- 01 (3) 02/ 28/ 01



Ms. Kirsch informed that the Commttee would be receiving a
chronol ogy. She listed the dates of the evidentiary hearing on the
contenpt issue: June 21, 2000; oral argunents and bench ruling:
July 27, 2000; release of the court order: Septenber 18, 2000.

Senator Lenman referred to the 90-day deadline for the departnent to
begi n nmaki ng paynents and asked when the count began.

Ms. Kirsch answered that the 90-day deadline began July 27, because
that was the date the court first ruled. She said the matter is
somewhat conpl ex due to the three different groups of clains. She
expl ai ned that sone clains had been tended since the appeal, others
were received during the process and that still others would be
comng in the future. Therefore, she stated, each group had a
different tine frame in which to be paid.

Ms. Kirsch answered Senator Leman's next query stating that the
case had been appealed to the Suprene Court, 30 days after the
superior court's original decision in April 1999. This, she noted
was before the superior court judge issued the 90-day deadli ne.

Senator Leman asked if the superior court judge could order the
departnment to pay for the services, knowi ng the case was on appeal

Ms. Kirsch affirnmed and detailed the procedure of requesting a
stay. She stated that the stay issue is resolved in advance of the
contenpt matter. She then explained that the issue of contenpt
arose because the departnent was not in conpliance with the Apri
1999 order. She added that the stay issue was first heard in the
superior court because it is the superior court's order that the
department was charged with not conplying wth.

Senat or Leman requested the date that the departnent issued the
first paynent.

JANET CLARKE, Director, Dvision of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Health and Social Services, responded that the
depart nent commenced paynent of clainms on Septenber 26, 2000 and,
"that was just in tinme of the 90-day requirenent from the judge
fromthe July 27'" hearing."

Senator G een and Senator Lenman questioned whether this was 60 or
90- days.

Ms. Clarke clarified that there is a nonth-long tinmefrane in which

the state issues warrants. She explained that the exerci se began on
Sept enber 26 to ensure that the checks were actually nailed prior

SFC- 01 (4) 02/ 28/ 01



to the October 26 deadline.

Senator Leman requested a list of recipients of those paynents and
t he amount of the paynents to each provider.

Ms. Carke spoke to confidentiality concerns about providing
specific information about clients saying she was unsure how t hey
apply to vendors.

Ms. Kirsch added that this data has been provided in the past but
with all identifying information w thheld.

Senat or Leman asked for "whatever information you can provide to
the fullest extent.”

Co-Chair Kelly asked the witness to clarify her earlier statenent
about the prevailing party witing the judgnents.

Ms. Kirsch explained that, often when a judge rules fromthe bench,
the judge then directs the prevailing party, the party the judge
ruled in favor of, to draft a judgnent, or a final order for the
judge's signature. She continued that the judgnent would then be
"l odged” with the court, which is different than "filed", because
it is a docunment that is subject to the opposing party's
obj ections. She noted that the opposing party has three days to
raise objections if for instance a prevailing party inserted
| anguage contrary to what the court said, or the opposing party
believes msinterpreted what the judge said or possibly inplied
sonet hing that was not clearly stated.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the judgnent and the Menorandum O Deci sion
were the sane.

Ms. Kirsch replied that they usually are, but that judges operate
differently. She stated that often, after a ruling fromthe bench
there is not a Menorandum of Decision. However, she noted other
times the court would take the matter under advisenent at the
hearing and announce that a Menorandum of Understanding is
forthcom ng.

Co-Chair Kelly wanted to know if the Menorandum of Deci sion dated
March 16, 1999, and signed by Judge Sentan was witten by the judge
or by Pl anned Parent hood.

Ms. Kirsch responded that this decision was produced by the court
and granted sunmary judgnent to the plaintiff.

Co-Chair Kelly then asked the definition of "elective" versus

SFC- 01 (5) 02/ 28/ 01



"t herapeutic" abortion.

Ms. Kirsch read the definition for therapeutic abortion from7 AAC
47.290(8), "the termnation of a pregnancy certified by a physician
as nedically necessary to prevent the death or disability of a
woman or to aneliorate a condition harnful to the wonman's physica

or psychol ogical health or that results from actions that would
constitute a crime of sexual assault under AS 11.41.410, 11.41.425,

a crime of sexual abuse of mnor under 11.41.434 to 440, or the
crime of incest under 11.41.450.

Ms. Kirsch answered Co-Chair Kelly's next question stating that a
physician mnust certify an aneliorating psychological health
condi ti on.

Co-Chair Kelly requested fromthe Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces, data on the nunber of abortions that were perforned due
to an aneliorating psychological health condition versus those
performed due to incest or rape or for the immedi ate physica
health of the nother. He also requested of the rape or incest
situations, "how many of those were actually taken to court and
proven to be rape or incest."

Ms. Clarke agreed to conpile that information.

Senator Green asked if the first paynents nade on Septenber 26
equal ed $98, 300.

Ms. Clarke affirnmed.

Senator Green wanted to know if the services were continuing and
the bills were accruing during the process of the hearing and
trial.

Ms. C arke detailed the three paynents nade in Septenber, Cctober
and Novenber that were included in the supplenmental request. She
poi nted out that the first paynent, of $98, 3000 was | arge because
the judge ordered the departnent to pay all the clains pended from
the prior year.

Senator Geen asked if that included clains for services perforned
in 1999.

Ms. Cl arke answered that it did.

Senat or Green then asked where the departnent obtained the noney to
pay those clains.

SFC- 01 (6) 02/ 28/ 01



Ms. Clarke replied that the departnent did argue in court that al
the state funds in the Medicaid account were general fund matching
funds to the federal Medicaid program That argunent did not
prevail, she noted, and the departnment was faced with taking those
general fund match dollars that had been appropriated such and
usi ng them as strai ght general funds.

Senator Green did not see how the judge could require the genera
fund match funds to be spent as straight general funds.

Ms. O arke added that w thout a separate appropriation, other funds
beside those in the Medicaid account could not be used for the
court-ordered Medicaid paynents.

Senator Green next wanted to know if the departnent submtted
information to the federal governnment regarding these clains.

Ms. Clarke replied that the departnment reports to the federa
governnment those abortions that are consistent with the Hyde
Anendnent. She expl ai ned that the federal government pays a portion
of the costs for abortions covered under that anmendnent. She noted
that those services perfornmed that do not qualify for federa
rei nbursenent are not reported to the federal governnent, because
the state is not requesting funds.

Senator Ward wanted to know if the funds used were federal Medicaid
funds and if that was the reason the departnent did not report the
cl ai nB.

M. darke explained that the federal governnent pays 60 percent of
Medicaid costs of submtted clains. However, she reiterated,
because the federal government would not pay a portion of these
claims, they were not submtted. She defined the federal Hyde
Amendnment as prohibiting the use of federal funds to pay for
abortions except for situations of rape, incest or when the life of
the nother is at risk. She noted that the services in question do
not qualify wunder the provisions of the Hyde Anendnent and
therefore would not receive federal reinbursenent. She stressed
that the paynents in question only involve state funds.

Ms. Cl arke answered Senator Ward's next question noting that a few
of the perforned abortions did qualify for federal funding under
t he Hyde Amendnent provisions, but that nost did not.

Senator Ward renai ned uncl ear as to whether the funds were state or
f eder al

Ms. Kirsch reiterated that the funds used to nmake the court ordered

SFC- 01 (7) 02/ 28/ 01



paynments were state funds. She explained the Mdicaid procedure
where state funds are used to initially pay the entire claim She
continued that the departnment then submts the clains that qualify
under the federal Medicaid rules, to the federal governnent and
recei ves reinbursenent of 60 percent in federal funds for those
services. She noted that the state funds involved could be
designated by the legislature as funds designed to be federally
mat ched, which is the case with the funds in question. This point,
she continued, was argued before the court stressing upon the fact
that the | egislature has appropriated these funds with a condition
upon them that they would be used for services that wll be
federally matched. She stated that, "The court, in its order, was
very clear that it was not directing us to spend noney, to spend
state noney, in such a way that we would be requesting federal
rei nbursenent . "

Senator Ward next asked if the state funds had been first spent for
federally matched services, the federal reinbursenment was received
and then that noney was used to pay for the abortion services. He
inquired, "I"mjust trying to find out if the dollars were spent
before the match was achi eved. "

Ms. O arke answered that the state funds in question had only been
used for the abortion clains. She repeated that no federal dollars
were spent on abortion services unless they were consistent with
t he Hyde Anendnent.

Senator Ward clarified, "the nobney was taken out of a specific
appropriation for a match and spent on sonething other than what it
was appropriated for."

Ms. O arke affirnmed.

Senator Ward asserted that in this case, a judge appropriated noney
rather than the legislature. He explained this is because the
| egi sl ature appropriated funds to be used for federally matched
services, but the judge instructed the departnent to use those
funds for non-federally matched servi ces.

Senat or Green asked what the difference is between a nedically
necessary abortion and a therapeutic abortion.

Ms. Kirsch stressed that she has urged the court to use the term
"therapeutic" because it is defined in regulations. She stated that
"medically necessary", is atermthat is commonly used within the
Medi caid program and can nean slightly different things in the
context of different types of service. "But in a very broad and
general sense, nedically necessary, usually neans that a physician

SFC- 01 (8) 02/ 28/ 01



needs to certify it as sonmething that the patient needs to
aneliorate sone kind of harnful condition,” she stated. She noted
that in other services, such as transplants, nedically necessary
coul d be defined much nore specifically. She gave an exanple of a
liver transplant that m ght be nedically necessary only when the
patient is in the end stages of a disease, or that perhaps a
certain type of transplant is nedically necessary. But generally it
means physician certified or physician recormmended, she remarked.

Senator Green renmained unclear about the nedically necessary
abortions that qualify for federal reinbursenent under the Hyde
Amendnent, and those that are required by the Al aska court.

Ms. Kirsch explained that part of the confusion could be a result
of the fact that the federal decisions are based on the federal
constitution, whereas this case deals with a state claimin the
state court and therefore subject to the state constitution, which
is different fromthe federal constitution. She stated, "in terns
of what it would require in order to be constitutional in terns of
a privacy right, there's a different body of case |law that applies
to that. | believe that that's the root of the inconsistency that
you're seeing there.”

Senat or Leman asked if the department distinguished between the
abortions that qualify for federal funding under the Hyde Anendnent
and those that do not, and if it intends to seek rei nbursenent from
the federal government for those that would qualify. He requested a
br eakdown of those services.

Ms. Clarke replied that the qualifying services are submtted to
the federal governnent and that she woul d provide nore details.

Section 8 (a)

Department of Health and Social Services

Medi cai d Budget Request Item (BRU)

Medi cai d caseload growmh of 7% and hi gher average cost per
nonth, particularly for hospital and pharmacy costs.

$9, 124, 700 general funds

$50, 652, 700 federal funds

$11, 412,900 statutory designated programreceipts

Ms. Clarke stated that the departnent had prepared answers to the
guestions raised on this request during the previous neeting. She
detailed the clarification made to the children's services data.
She used a graph to show that while the trend continued to rise,
the rate of growmh was leveling out. She added that Medicaid
services are usually in greater demand during the winter.

SFC- 01 (9) 02/ 28/ 01



Section 8 (b)

Department of Health and Social Services

Medi cai d BRU

I mpl enent facility rate-setting settlements with Medicaid
servi ce providers.

$23, 100 general funds

$34,800 federal funds

Ms. Clarke explained that this request is to pay settlenents
currently before the Medicaid Rate Advisory Comm ssion on natters
related to paynent of rates to health care facilities. She noted
that there are three different settlenents involved: Ketchikan
General Hospital, Cordova Conmmunity Medical Center and St. Ann's
Care Center. She explained that these settlenents chall enge how
rates had been set for these facilities and include audits,
Medi cai d and Medi care cost reports, and their inplenentation. She
stated that the reason these settlenents are included as a
Departnent of Health and Social Services request rather than in the
Judgnent and C ains section, is because paynents to the facilities
are made through the departnent’'s established paynent system which
the Departnent of Law does not have.

Senator Hof fman requested an explanation of the different match
per cent ages.

Ms. Clarke responded that it m ght have to do with the particul ar
claiminvol ved, the year of the claimand whether the services were
provi ded while the state was under a 50-percent rate rather than
the current sixty-forty percent match rate with the federal
gover nnent .

Section 8 (c)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Cat astrophic and Chronic Illness BRU

Casel oad growth and increased pharmacy costs, which exceed
budget ed anount .

$430, 400 general funds

Ms. Clarke stated that this request is to support the state
Cat astrophic and Chronic Illness Assistance (CAMA) programthrough
the end of FY 00. She noted that the |egislature authorized $4.3
mllion to CAMA for FY 01, but that the funds needed to cover the
FY 00 costs are in a separate appropriation and the departnent
could not transfer funds from other sources. She rem nded the
Committee that the legislature established up this program after
elimnating the General Relief Medical program She stressed that
those eligible for CAMA are the "poorest of the poor." She
explained that to qualify for this program participants nust have

SFC-01 (10) 02/ 28/ 01



| ess than $500 in assets, less than $300 nonthly incone, do not
qualify for any other program or coverage and also have a
qual i fying nedical condition. She listed the qualifying nedica

conditions as: termnal illness, in-patient hospitalization,
chenot herapy treatnment for cancer, or chronic conditions, such as
di abet es, seizure disorder, chronic illness or hypertension. She

noted that nost of the funds used in this program cover the costs
of prescription drugs. She added that this program helps
partici pants remai n i ndependent and out of institutionalized care
facilities.

Senat or Austerman asked if this programoperates solely with state
f unds.

Ms. Clarke affirmnmed.

Senator Green wanted to know if there was a conparable federal
programthat could provide services to this group of people.

BOB LABBE, Director, Division of Medical Assistance, Departnent of
Health and Social Services, replied he was unaware on any. He
pointed out that a nunber of states have simlar prograns. He
stressed that the Medicaid programis targeted to serve those who
are elderly, blind, disabled or famlies with children. The people
served by CAMA, he explained, are wusually single adults and
childless couples, wunder age 65, who would not neet the
disabilities requirenment for Medicaid coverage. He noted that sone
eventual ly qualify for full disability benefits under the Medicaid
program

Senator Austerman further clarified that the federal programcovers
those with i ncomes bel ow 200- percent of the national poverty |evel.
He asked if needy individuals, "once they fall down so far, they
can fall out of all the federal prograns.”

M. Labbe replied that the question is not primarily about incone,

but rather because Medicaid doesn't pay for single people unless
they are disabled or elderly.

SFC 01 # 28, Side B 09:49 AM

M. Labbe continued that there are sonme individuals who have very
| ow i nconmes, but because they are childless or under 65 and not
di sabl ed, they would not qualify for Medicaid.

Section 8 (a)

SFC-01 (11) 02/ 28/ 01



Departnent of Health and Social Services

Medi cai d Budget Request Item (BRU)

Medi cai d caseload growh of 7% and hi gher average cost per
nonth, particularly for hospital and pharmacy costs.

$9, 124, 700 general funds

$50, 652, 700 federal funds

$11, 412,900 statutory designated programreceipts

Ms. O arke resuned answering the questions posed to the departnent
at the last hearing. She addressed the Denali KidCare program cost
to the state and the conparison of the children's heal th expansi on
and the federal Medicaid authorized percentage phasing. She
referred to Attachnment A [copy on file] that shows the increases
that occurred when the |egislature passed the children's health
expansion. At this tine, she pointed out, the Medicaid percentage
increased from 50 percent to 59.8 percent, resulting in a $30
mllion saving to the state. The chart, she said, conpares the $30
mllion savings to the general fund anmount spent on the children's
heal t h expansi on. She detail ed the anount of noney the state spent
in FY 99, FY 00 and FY 01, as listed on the chart.

Ms. Clarke then referred to Attachment B, which provides
i nformati on about the poverty |level standards for different famly
Si zes.

M. Labbe pointed out that 200 percent of the national poverty
| evel is the standard neasurenent for qualification into the Denal
Ki dCare program He infornmed that nonthly incone is used for this
pur pose.

Senator W/l ken wanted to know if eligibility for Denali KidCare
programis based on gross incone.

M. Labbe replied that the program primarily considers gross
i ncone.

Senator W/ ken asked if the gross inconme includes pernmanent fund
di vi dend i ncone.

M. Labbe believed permanent fund dividend inconme is excluded under
state statute.

Senator WI ken shared that he | earned that permanent fund divi dend
inconme is excluded fromincome eligibility requirenents for daycare
prograns. He stated that if the requirenment were different for
Denali KidCare, he would Iike to know about it. He then cal cul at ed
the qualifying income for a famly of four at approximately $21 per
hour .

SFC-01 (12) 02/ 28/ 01



M. Labbe affirmed that this famly would qualify for insurance
coverage for the children. He noted that the figures listed on the
chart reflect the policy that goes into effect April 1, 2002 and
are based on the | atest federal poverty level information.

Senat or W1 ken questioned the one-nenber famly category shown on
the chart.

M. Labbe replied that this is possible in certain situations
because KidCare covers children up to age 19. He expl ained that 17
and 18-year-olds living on their own could participate in the
program

Senator Wl ken was interested to see the distribution of KidCare
recipients with regards to famly size.

Senator Geen asked if Medicaid benefits are paid to the
f at her/ husband under the Denali KidCare program

M. Labbe answered that adult coverage is only provided for
pregnant wonen.

Senator Geen asked if therefore, the famly size only counted the
wonen and children in that famly.

M. Labbe answered that all famly nenbers are counted.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if dividends from Native Corporations are
i ncluded in the conputation of gross incone.

M. Labbe believed the dividends are counted as income in the nonth
received, unless they are used for an allowabl e i nvestnent, such as
the purchase of a hone. He admitted that the eligibility
requi renents are technical and he offered assistance of a staff
menber with nore knowl edge on the issue.

Senat or Ward asked if the shareholders of Cook Inlet Regional
Corporation were disqualified after receiving the recent $50, 000
di vi dend.

M. Labbe predicted that they did not qualify during the nonth that
the dividend was received. He was not aware of the specifics of the
situati on.

Senat or Ward requested that information.

Co- Chair Donl ey expressed that it was "anmazing"” that a one-incone

SFC-01 (13) 02/ 28/ 01



famly with five children earning over $60,000 annually, qualify
for this program

Co-Chair Kelly added that the sane famly, if menbers of Cook Inlet
Regi onal Corporation, could receive an additional $100,000 in
Native corporation dividends and still be eligible for Denali
Ki dCare coverage, with the exception of the one nonth the dividends
were received.

Senator G een also noted that this hypothetical famly is also
eligible for Indian health services.

Ms. C arke proceeded to Attachment C [copy on file.]

M. Labbe detailed that after Denali KidCare was inplenented, the
department constructed a project with the Public Assistance Quality
Control Unit to review sone questions that were raised. One
guestion, he shared, is whether participants had heal th insurance,
or if it was available at the tinme that they applied for
participation in the program He stated that the statistical
sanpl es revi ewed, showed that 12 percent of participants had ot her
health insurance at the tinme of application. O the renaining 88
percent, he said, 91 percent did not have any insurance avail abl e.

Ms. Clarke then referred to Attachnent D [copy on file] that
addresses the departnment's marketing program She pointed out that
the bul k of the funds in question were froma Robert Wod Johnson
grant to encourage marketing and outreach efforts.

Senator G een asked if this is the exclusive purpose of the grant.
Ms. Clarke answered it is.

Senat or Wl ken asked if the grants require state nmatching funds.
Ms. Clarke answered that they do not.

Ms. Clarke summari zed there are a nunber of factors driving up the
cost of Medicare. She referenced the increased nunber of adults,
di sabl ed and el derly people seeking care as well as the children's
expansi on program which accounts for approxi mately five-percent of
the general fund in FY 00. She listed the anpbunt of general fund
allocated to Medicaid that are spent on services to the disabled as
35 percent, 16 percent for the elderly and 15 percent on adults.
She stated that the elderly and disabled are two groups of
particular concern with increased grow h projected.

Section 8 (d)

SFC-01 (14) 02/ 28/ 01



Departnent of Health and Social Services

Subsi di zed Adopti ons BRU

Mai ntai n exi sting appropriation |evel for subsidized adoption
and guardi anshi p by replacing TANF funds, which could not be
used for these costs as antici pated.

$1, 000, 000 general funds

$1, 000, 000 Inter-Agency Receipts

Ms. Clarke explained that this item is a fund source change
request. She shared that during the previous session, the
departnment told the |legislature that Tenporary Assi stance for Needy
Fam lies (TANF) funds could be used for this program However, she
since |earned that those funds could not be used. She said that
1,200 of the 1,500 adoptions and guardi anships the departnent
facilitates each nonth qualify for a federal 4-E program However
she inforned that the federally provided TANF funds could not be
used to provide the state match to those 4-E funds.

Ms. Clarke stated, "TANF funds nust be used to support a famly."
She defined this as a mnor child with a custodial parent or a
caretaker. She said that adoptions and guardi anships by relatives
qualify, but that non-relative guardi anshi ps do not.

Ms. Carke then shared that to qualify for TANF funds for
guar di anshi ps, the departnent is able to consider only the incone
of the child. For adoptions however, she stated that incone of the
entire famly nust be considered. She rel ayed departnent concerns
about inposing on the adoptive famlies requesting incone
information after these famlies have agreed to adopt special needs
children. Therefore, she stated that TANF funds woul d not be used
for those adoptions. She also noted that Al aska's TANF funds coul d
not be used to fund out of state guardi anshi ps and adoptions. Al

that remai ned, she stressed, were the approximately 126 rel ative
guar di anshi ps in Al aska each nonth, at a nonthly cost of $900, 000.

Ms. Clarke continued that the department planned to utilize TANF
funds for the approximately 126 qualifying cases. However, she said
that the anobunt paid in a guardianship is considered "basic
mai nt enance” and therefore subject to all of the standing TANF
rules. In particular, she pointed out the assignnment of child
support and work requirenents.

Ms. Carke sunmarized that under these circunstances, the
departnment was unable to use the TANF funds in the subsidized
adopti on program She assured "if we could have used this noney we
woul d have. "

Senat or Hof f man wanted to know what the TANF funds were then spent

SFC-01 (15) 02/ 28/ 01



on.

Ms. Clarke replied that the funds were not being spent. She
explained that to do so, the department would have to receive
| egi sl ative authority to spend the funds el sewhere.

Senat or Hof fman asked if the funds woul d | apse.

Ms. Clarke replied that the TANF funds are part of the state bl ock
grant and do not |apse. She explained that the state does not
receive the funds until they are expended, but that they are
| ocated in an "Al aska" account in Washington DC. She added that the
departnent tracks the balance of the account and that the state
does not earn interest.

[ Note: the spreadsheet supplied by the Ofice of Minagenent and
Budget separates Section 8 (d) into two itens.]

Section 8 (d)

Department of Health and Social Services

Communi ty Devel opnment Disabilities Gants BRU

Technical correction in fund source from $120,000 G- to
GF/ Ment al Heal t h.

And

Section 8 (d)

Department of Health and Social Services

Services to Chronically Mentally 11l BRU

Technical correction in fund source from $203,000 G- to
G-/ Ment al Heal t h.

Ms. Clarke shared these one-tine fund source changes nake a
techni cal correction as recomended by the Departnment of Law.

Section 8 (e)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Probati on Services BRU

Appropriate interest earnings on the Juvenile Accountability
I ncentive Block Grant trust to the program

$125, 000 Statutory Designated Program Receipts

Ms. O arke spoke to this request from the D vision of Juvenile
Justice. She noted that the fund source is interest earned on the
Federal Juvenile Accountability Incentive block grant. She
expl ai ned one of the requirenments of this block grant is to earn
interest on the grant and spend it on qualifying prograns. She said
an oversight prevented the inclusion of this itemin the regular FY

SFC-01 (16) 02/ 28/ 01



01 budget.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked what projects the division planned to spend
t he funds on.

Ms. Clarke replied that $75,000 woul d be spent for production of a
training video for use in the Al aska Court System for juveniles,
caregivers and victins. She said the remining $50,000 would be
used to inprove the Wde-Area Network Program Connectivity to | aw
enforcenment, courts and schools. She warned that if the funds were
not expended by June 30, 2001, they would be revoked.

Co-Chair Donley wanted to know who deci ded the best use of these
funds.

Ms. Carke answered that it was the division director. She added
that the intent is to use the funds on one-tine itens, and that
t hey must be spent for qualified purposes.

Section 8 (f)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

CVHG Desi gnat ed Eval uation and Treat nent BRU

Gowmh in services needed for Designated Evaluation and
Tr eat ment .

$974, 100 general funds

Ms. Clarke stated this request is for general fund/nental health
funds for grants to those hospitals that participate in the
Designated Evaluation and Treatnent program She explained that
this "last resort” paynment program provides nental health
evaluation and treatnent in |ocal hospitals for indigent
i ndi vi dual s.

Ms. Carke listed the FY 00 and FY 01 costs for several conmmunities
to denonstrate the cost increase. She noted that Fairbanks and
Juneau are the nmain participants in the program with Mat-Su
participating primarily for transportation services. She stated
that the Fairbanks Menorial Hospital expanded its psychiatric care
unit in the mddle of the previous year, and that the departnent
was behind in planning for the increase in services.

Ms. O arke stressed the main benefit of this programis the ability

to address comunity concerns about nentally ill individuals in the
correction system Since inception, she pointed out, that community
has severely reduced the nunber of nmentally ill individuals sent to

correctional institutions. She added that the nunber of patients
transported from Fairbanks and Juneau to the Al aska Psychiatric
Institute has been dramatical ly reduced.

SFC-01 (17) 02/ 28/ 01



Section 8 (Q)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Vital Statistics BRU

Reduce backlog of requests for birth, death and other
certificates using increased receipts fromfees.

$225, 000 Recei pt Supported Services

Ms. Carke noted that this request would fund three itens, the
first being to cover the $10,000 cost of a new lease in the
Fai rbanks of fice. She continued that $35, 000 would be used to hire
nonper manent enpl oyees to reduce or elimnate the current backl og
of mail requests for vital records. She finished with the third
itemto utilize $170,000 in receipt supported services funds to
replace the sane amount of general funds, which would be
transferred to Public Health Nursing to pay for the salary
I ncrease.

Section 18

Vari ous Agenci es

M scel | aneous Cl ai ns and Stal e-dated Warrants BRU
$85, 500 general funds

$141, 100 federal funds

Ms. Carke referred to the departnent's clains, noting that federa
funds could be received to cover sone of the clains. She stated
that many of the clains are for nedical services provided to
children in state custody, which could be Medicaid eligible.

Co-Chair Donley interrupted to ask if there were any clains
utilizing general funds.

Ms. O arke answered yes and summarized these into two categories.
The first category, she explained related to single-audits
performed on grantees where it was determ ned that the departnent
owes additional noney froma prior fiscal year. She detailed the
second category dealing with nedical bills incurred by children
while in state custody. She said it was initially thought that
these children qualified for Medicaid or other health care
coverage, but it was later learned that they did not qualify.
Therefore, she stated, the state nust pay for the nedical services
since the child was in state custody.

Section 19 (a) (6)

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Medi cai d BRU

AR 22520-00 Medicaid Services Special FY 00 ratification.
$4, 268, 866. 67 general funds

SFC-01 (18) 02/ 28/ 01



Ms. Clarke commented that this request "cones about froma variety
reasons."” She listed the prinmary reason as the understandi ng that
the departnment would not have ratification at the end of FY 00.
However, she said the federal governnent deferred federal revenues
t he department had cl ai ned. She stressed that the departnment shoul d
still receive those funds, but wthout that revenue, the general
fund ratification is necessary.

Ms. Clarke explained these clains qualify for 100 percent federal
rei mbursenment under the Indian Health Service program She detail ed
the process of deferring questionable clains. She said the deferred
clains are reviewed a second tine and if still found questi onabl e,
are disallowed. At this point, she stated, the decision could be
appeal ed. She noted that the clains in question are in the deferral
stage. She relayed that M. Labbe, Director, D vision of Mdica
Assi stance, has opined that clains would be approved, either in the
revi ew stage or during appeal.

Ms. Clarke assured that if the federal funds are received, the
state funds would revert to the general fund.

Senator Green wanted to know if there would be a penalty for
waiting to appropriate these funds until the follow ng year.

Ms. Clarke replied that she did not think there would be except
that, "it probably woul d make the accountants unconfortable."”

Departnent of Law

DEAN GUANELI, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Legal Services
Section, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law gave an overvi ew of
Cvil Rule 82; the court rule that allows prevailing parties in
litigation to recoup a portion of their attorney fees. He expl ai ned
that the anmount of attorney fees recouped is generally based on a
percentage of the anount awarded in the case following a sliding
scal e. However, he pointed out that nobst of the cases that the
state is involved in are public interest litigation pertaining to
i njunctions and changes in state policy, and do not include cash
awards. For these cases, he continued, Cvil Rule 82 provides for a
recoup of 30 percent of the attorney fees if the case in question
goes to trial and 20 percent if the case does not go to trial. He
noted that the Planned Parenthood public interest litigation is the
one case that the Crimnal Division is currently involved.

Co-Chair Donley remarked that he was surprised that the Crim nal

Division has handling this. He asked how it became a Crim nal
Division matter.

SFC-01 (19) 02/ 28/ 01



M. Guaneli responded that the decision was nmade at the early
states of the litigation based on review letters issued by the
CGvil Dvision that expressed doubts about the constitutionality of
the legislative actions to wthhold funding from the abortion
services. He said that if the Gvil Dvision handled that
litigation, it mght be perceived in sonme quarters that the
di vi si on was not vigorously handling the case.

Co-Chair Donley wanted to know if the Civil Division transferred
funds to the Grimnal Division to cover the costs of defending this
case. He spoke of additional funds appropriated to the Crim nal
Division to offset increased funding to the Public Defenders
Agency.

M. Guaneli assured that the Crimnal Division did receive funds
fromthe Gvil Dvision for this purpose. He added that because the
case has proceeded faster than anticipated, that all of the funds
had not yet been expended.

M. Guaneli continued detailing the attorney fee award to Pl anned
Par ent hood. He stated that approximtely $77,000 in attorney fees
was awarded to Planned Parenthood for the trial court portion of
the litigation, and $27,000 in attorney fees for the appeal
portion. He cal culated 20 percent of the trial court anmount to be
$15, 000 and 20 percent of the appeal court anpbunt at approximately
$5, 000.

M. Guaneli enphasi zed however, "The 20 percent figure in Rule 82
in these kinds of cases really is just a starting point. There is a
whol e laundry list of factors the court can consider in adjusting
that presunptive fee up or down." He shared that in fact, one of
the justices that dissented from the adoption of that "laundry
list" said, "this is really gonna unduly conplicate and prol ong
attorney's fees litigation because any attorney worth his or her
salt, is going to try to find a way under those |list of exceptions
totry to bury that anmount." In addition, M. Quaneli pointed out,
there is a "catchall" exception that allows, "any other equitable
factor that the court deens relevant." Therefore, he stated the
court has the flexibility to adjust the presunptive 20 percent. He
surmsed that in public interest litigation the adjustnment would
nost often be an increase. He shared that the court takes into
consideration for exanple, the conplexity of the issues, the
reasonabl eness of the fees and the difficulty of the work. He
opi ned that unless the court awards an anmount close to the ful

cost of attorney fees, attorneys woul d be di scouraged from argui ng
public interest litigant cases. He specul ated that the court would
al so award an anount higher than the 20 percent figure in this

SFC-01 (20) 02/ 28/ 01



case.

Co- Chair Donley wanted to know how nuch nore than 20 percent did
the court award.

M. Quaneli was unable to detail all the exceptions but pointed out
that the state was ordered to pay a little over $100,000, while the
total 20 percent calculation is $20,000 under Rule 82.

BARBARA RITCH E, Deputy Attorney GCeneral, Givil Di vi sion

Department of Law, addressed the three public interest litigation
itens of the G vil Division. She listed them as: Trustees for
Al aska, Cook Inlet Keeper versus State of Al aska, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, pertaining to the permt for |easing and the
bel uga whal e i ssue, and the superior court and Suprenme Court |evels
of Northern Alaska Environnental Center and Sierra Club et. al.
versus State of Alaska, the Northern Intertie case. She noted that
in addition to the reasons given by M. Guaneli regarding the
difficulties in determning attorney's fees, these cases are
considered Administrative Appeals and are subject to additiona

factors. She expl ained these cases are appeals of the final agency
deci sion brought under Appellate Rule #601 Appeals, and are not
original actions. Therefore, she stressed, GCvil Rule #82, which
applies to original actions, does not apply to these cases under
current law. She continued that in adm nistrative appeals cases,
attorney's fees are determ ned under Appellate Rule #508, which
states that attorney's fees are determ ned by the court and gives
no presunptive schedul e.

Co-Chair Donl ey asked the witness to review the cases that did have
trial decisions.

Ms. Ritchie responded that these cases did have trial court
deci sions, but were adnministrative appeal cases and subject to
Appel | ate Rul e #508.

SFC 01 # 29, Side A 10:36 AM

Ms. Ritchie continued that nost Adm nistrative Appeals would not go
to trial, but would instead have briefings and argunments in an
"appel | ate capacity" with the superior court sitting as the first
| evel appeal. Therefore, she stated it is difficult to ascertain
whet her the attorney's fee reinbursenent rate of 20-percent for
non-trial cases, or 30-percent for trial cases, would apply.

Ms. Ritchie used the previous explanations to address the Northern

SFC-01 (21) 02/ 28/ 01



Intertie case. She stated that at the superior court |evel, the
court awarded $54,000 for reasonable attorney's fees. She noted
that the plaintiff had requested $108, 000, and through litigation,
the Department of Law received a fifty-percent reduction. She
calculated the 30-percent rate at $16,230, and the 20-percent
rei nbursement rate at $10,820. Similarly, she listed the figures
for the Suprene Court, noting that the court awarded $45, 000, of
the $102, 000 requested for attorney's fees, which would be $13, 500,
using the 30-percent rate calculation and $9,000 under the 20-
percent rate cal cul ation.

Co- Chair Donley shared that he has received correspondence from
i ndi viduals who have read public reports on judgnents the state
pays and are distressed at the anount of noney the executive branch
pays to particul ar advocacy groups. He stressed it is inportant to
di scuss the issue and to dispel the appearance of inpropriety.

Ms. Ritchie next addressed the Cook Inlet Keeper case. She shared
that the appellants had requested al nbst $118,000 in attorney's
fees and the departnent obtained a reduced anount of $76,000. She
calcul ated that a 30-percent award woul d have been $23,000 and a
20- percent award woul d have been $15, 000.

Senator Ward asked for clarification that an Adm nistrative Appea
is not governed by the sane court rules that apply to litigations
agai nst individual s.

Ms. Ritchie responded to Senator Ward's next question by expl aining
that Adm nistrative Appeals are governed by appellate rules that
are different from the civil rules, which apply to an original
action. She stated that this process is common for other states, as
well as with the federal governnent.

Co- Chair Donl ey added that one difference is that sone cases were
considered public interest litigation. He referred to a bill passed
by the | egislature the previous session, but vetoed by the governor
regarding attorney's fees reinbursenment for public interest
litigation. He spoke of a 1998 case, which set the precedent to no
| onger pro-rate public interest litigation based on portions of the
case in which the plaintiff prevailed. He stated that the plaintiff
is now awarded the full cost of attorney fees even if the plaintiff
| ost 90-percent of the entire case, only prevailing on one or nore
poi nt .

Ms. Ritchie stated that public interest litigants were involved in
both adm nistrative appeal s and origi nal cases.

Co-Chair Donley stated that the remaining questions raised in the

SFC-01 (22) 02/ 28/ 01



previous hearing would be addressed "informally" outside of the
neeting, rather than by conducting an executive session.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 10:44 AM

SFC-01 (23) 02/ 28/ 01



